
 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

AGENDA 
DECEMBER 19, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 
Roll Call. 
 
Approval of Minutes: November 21, 2019. 
 
 
(1) BZA-1219-30 Cooper Smith is requesting a Variance for the Location of a 

Fence for the property located at 1200 Vestavia Place. The 
purpose of this request is to build a fence in the front setback to 
allow for privacy. The property is owned Cooper Smith and is 
zoned Vestavia Hills R-9. 

 
(2) BZA-1219-31 Jacob Polson is requesting a Front Setback Variance for the 

property located at 3408 Hollingswood Circle. The purpose of this 
request is to reduce the setback to 32’ in lieu of the required 50’. 
The property is owned by Jacob Polson and is zoned Vestavia Hills 
R-2. 

 
(3) BZA-1219-32 Martin Evans are requesting a Rear & Side Setback Variance for 

the property located at 2105 Mountain View Drive. The purpose 
of this request is to reduce the rear setback and side setback to 6’ in 
lieu of the required 15’. The property is owned by Martin Evan and 
is zoned Vestavia Hills R-2. 

 
 
Time of Adjournment.  



BZA Minutes 
Page | 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

MINUTES 
 

November 21, 2019 
 
 The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular 
session on this date at 6:00 PM.  The roll was called with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Rick Rice, Chairman 
      Loring Jones, III 

Jim Griffo 
George Ponder    

  
       
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Tony Renta, Alt 
      Donald Holley Alt 
      Robert Gower 
       
       
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jack Wakefield, Planner/GIS 
    
       

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of October 14, 2019 were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of October 17, 2019 

was made by Mr. Jones and 2nd was by Mr. Griffo.  Motion as carried on a 
voice vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Griffo - yes Mr. Jones – yes 
Mr. Ponder – yes Mr. Rice - yes      
Motion carried. 

 
 

SIDE SETBACK VARIANCE 
 

BZA-1119-29 Sid & Elizabeth Lowman are requesting a Side Setback Variance 
for the property located at 2336 Wexford Lane. The purpose of 
this request is to reduce the setback to 10’ in lieu of the required 
15’ to build a bathroom addition. The property is owned by Sid & 
Elizabeth Lowman and is zoned Vestavia Hills R-2. 



BZA Minutes 
Page | 2 

 
 Mr. Wakefield described the area where the property is located and read the review 
which included the purpose of the request, comprehensive plan and staff review. 
 
 Sid Lowman stated that they wanted to add a master bathroom to the master 
bedroom and that his hardship was an odd shaped lot.  
  
 Mr. Rice opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present in 
regard to the request, Mr. Rice closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a 
motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve a 5’ rear setback variance to reduce the setback to 10’ 
in lieu of the required 15’ for the property located at 2336 Wexford Lane, was made by 
Mr. Jones and 2nd was by Mr. Griffo.  Motion was carried on a roll call vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Griffo - yes Mr. Jones – yes 
Mr. Ponder – yes Mr. Rice - yes      
Motion carried. 

 
 
At 6:06 PM, Mr. Rice made a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 6:06 PM. 
 
Jack Wakefield, 
Planner/GIS 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Date:     DECEMBER 19, 2019 
 

• CASE:  BZA-1219-30 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   Variance For Front Yard Fence 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1200 Vestavia Place 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Cooper Smith 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  N/A 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicants are seeking a variance for a fence in the front 
yard. Applicants contend there is a hardship because the property is a corner lot. City 
Engineer, Christopher Brady, has stated his opinion on the placement of the fence and 
regarding sight distance issues (attached). The property is currently zoned R-9. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  No problems noted.  

 
2. City Engineer Review:  Attached 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review:  No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted. 

 
 











From: Christopher Brady
To: Cooper Smith; Lori Beth Kearley
Cc: Jack Wakefield; Keith Blanton
Subject: RE: 1200 Vestavia Place
Date: Tuesday, November 26, 2019 11:53:13 AM
Attachments: image004.png

VestaviaPlace_1200_survey.pdf
VestaviaPlace_1200_pics.pdf

 
Cooper,
I have reviewed your preliminary information regarding request for variance to place a fence.   See
attached and below comments:
 

I have reviewed potential sight distance concerns with the fence placement.  As represented,
it appears the line of sight will exceed 250 lf from the current stop bar placement.
The survey states the edge of right-of-way as approximately 7.5’ from the home, however the
fence layout suggests approximately 8’.  You will need to insure at time of permitting the
fence construction that the fence will not encroach within the roadway right-of-way.  We
recommend offsetting approximately 6” to the inside of your property line.  Please coordinate
with a surveyor to stakeout the line prior to proceeding with construction of the fence.
To improve your sight distance when pulling from your driveway to the private common
shared drive at the rear of your lot, please consider revising to “angled” corners instead of the
represented “90 degree” corners.

 
Assuming your variance is approved and your proceed with fence construction, please stake out the
corners and request an additional engineering review from my office as a condition of your permit
issuance.
 
Please let me know if any questions,
 
 

 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer
Department of Public Services
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org
City of Vestavia Hills

 
 

From: Cooper Smith <cooper.smith@SRSRE.com> 

mailto:CBrady@vhal.org
mailto:cooper.smith@SRSRE.com
mailto:lbkearley@vhal.org
mailto:jwakefield@vhal.org
mailto:KBlanton@vhal.org
http://www.vhal.org/
http://www.twitter.com/VestaviaHillsAL
http://www.facebook.com/CityofVestaviaHills
http://www.alifeabove.org/

WWW.ALIFEABOVE.ORG



























 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Date:     DECEMBER 19, 2019 
 

• CASE:  BZA-1219-31 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   18’ front setback variance to reduce the setback to 32’ in 
lieu of the required 50.  

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3408 Hollingswood Circle 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Jacob Polson 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  Slate Barganier Building 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking a front setback variance to cover 
the front stoop of his house. The applicant contends there is a hardship because this lot 
is a non-conforming lot and that it is oddly shaped. When the house was built, the 
original front setback was 35’, it fell out of compliance through the annexation of 
Cahaba Heights. The applicant plans to build an addition in the rear of the property, 
which would abide by the code. Through these additions, the applicant intended to 
cover the front stoop as rain water gathers on that spot. The roof would divert the water 
to the side of the front stoop. The variance is needed to build a small roof over the front 
stoop. A covenants waiver was drafted and signed by all parties and recorded with 
Jefferson County for the recorded front setback The applicant’s property is zoned 
Vestavia Hills R-2.  

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  No problems noted.  

 
2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review:  No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted. 

 
 

















 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

Date:     DECEMBER 19, 2019 
 

• CASE:  BZA-1219-32 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION:   9’ rear setback variance to reduce the setback to 6’ in lieu 
of the required 15’ & 9’ side setback variance to reduce the setback to 6’ in lieu of the 
required 15’.  

  
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2105 Mountain View Drive 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Martin Evans 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  N/A 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking a rear and side setback variance to 
build a garage addition. The rear setback requirement is related to the requirement for 
accessory structures (Code of this section is attached). Building Official, Keith Blanton, 
stated that a detached garage fits the definition of an accessory structure. The applicant 
contends that the sewer lines in the rear of the property limits the buildable space in the 
rear. Also, if the structure was built according to code, it would not be accessible to a 
full-sized vehicle. This property is already a non-conforming lot and this action would 
bring the entire lot into compliance. The applicant’s property is zoned Vestavia Hills 
R-2.  

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  No problems noted.  

 
2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review:  No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: Detached garage fits definition of an accessory 

structure. 
 

 











Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

p. 4-4 

2. no sign, nameplate, display or advertising 
device of any kind shall be inscribed 
upon or attached to any such structure or 
otherwise erected so as to extend above 
the roof of the principal structure. 

4.3.8. Sight Distance Requirements. No 
planting, fence, building, wall, sign or 
other structure shall be placed or 
maintained so as to obstruct the vision of 
motorists within a clear sight triangle 
determined by the City Engineer in 
accordance with the City Public Works 
and Engineering Standards. 

§4.4. Accessory Structures 
4.4.1. Time of Construction. No accessory 

building shall be constructed until the 
construction of the principal building, to 
which it is accessory, has been 
commenced, and no accessory building 
shall be used unless the principal 
building is also being used 

4.4.2. Location 
1. Accessory structures shall be located 

only in the rear yard and shall not be 
located nearer than ten (10) feet from the 
principal dwelling. 

2. Side yard setback. The side yard setback 
shall be that required of principal 
structures in the applicable district. 

3. Rear yard setback. Accessory structures 
shall not be located nearer than fifteen 
(15) feet from the rear lot line. 

4.4.3. Height. Accessory structures shall not 
exceed one (1) story in height nor sixteen 
(16) feet. Greater height may be 
permitted only by a Special Exception 
upon request to the BZA in accordance 
with the provision of §12.3 Special 
Exceptions. 

4.4.4. Building Materials. If the accessory 
structure is a detached minor building 
consisting of masonry or frame walls and 

roof, then in such event said minor 
building shall be constructed with 
building materials of the same type and 
kind as used for the construction of the 
principal structure on the premises. 

4.4.5. Miscellaneous 
1. The term “accessory structure” shall not 

include: 
a. Any use not on the same lot to which it 

is accessory unless authorized by the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  

b. Any use not customarily incidental to 
a permitted use.  

c. Any use detrimental to a residential 
neighborhood, if located within a 
residential area or if abutting 
residential uses.  

d. An accessory dwelling except where 
specifically permitted by this 
Ordinance. 

§4.5. Fences. 
4.5.1. Visibility. No fence or wall shall be 

permitted between the building line and 
the front lot line. Fences shall not be 
placed within the clear sight triangle as 
determined by the City Engineer. 

4.5.2. No fence shall be erected, installed, 
constructed or otherwise structurally 
altered in the City except in strict 
compliance with the terms and provisions 
of this ordinance. 

4.5.3. Any person, firm, corporation, 
partnerships or other entity desiring to 
build a fence on any property located 
within the City shall follow the 
procedure and comply with the following 
requirements: 

1. Unless it has been approved as part of a 
valid Building Permit, no fence shall be 
erected, installed, constructed or 
otherwise structurally altered on any 


	AGENDA
	Minutes
	BZA 1219-30
	BZA-1219-31
	BZA-1219-32



